
                                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 
 
 
  

 

     
  

AGENDA  Wednesday, August 4, 2021  7:00PM 
          Hybrid: In Person & ZOOM 

A. CALL TO ORDER  
 

B. ROLL CALL/ PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 

C. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS/ PRESENTATION 
C1) Approve Minutes: Council Meeting 6-29-2021, Work Session 7-27-2021  
 

D. REPORTS:   
1)  Planning and Economic Development Report  
2)  City Manager’s Report 
3)  City Attorney’s Report  
4)  Council Remarks 
5)  Mayor’s Report 
 
 

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
Any member of the public may address the Council, during the time allotted for public comment. Each attendee will be 
allowed 3 minutes for comments at the discretion of the Presiding Officer. The public comment period will be limited to 40 
minutes and it is not a time for dialogue. If your public comment contains a series of questions, please submit those to the 
City Clerk in writing. This will facilitate follow-up by the council or staff. The City Council desires to allow an opportunity 
for public comment; however, the business of the City must proceed in an orderly, timely manner. 
 

F. OLD BUSINESS 
F1) Public Hearing: Variance requests from William R. Braswell Jr. of Oak Hall Companies, LLC for   the 
property located at 3809 East Avenue (Applicant requested deferment) 

 

G. NEW BUSINESS 
G1) Women’s Equality Day Proclamation 
G2) National Senior Citizens Day Proclamation 
G3) 50th Anniversary of the 26th Amendment Proclamation 
G4) Approve Alcohol Application – RR Property Group LLC dba Thriftown  
G5) Approve Electric Vehicle (EV) charging station license agreement with Georgia Power to install 
electric vehicle charging stations in the City of Clarkston 
G6) Adopt a resolution to encourage GDOT to add sound barriers between 285 and Clarkston when they 
add an extra lane   

 G7) Approve offering Gift cards for covid Vaccines 
 
 

H. ADJOURNMENT:  

Jamie Carroll       Ahmed Hassan 
Awet Eyasu   Laura Hopkins 
Debra Johnson  Mark W. Perkins 

                     
 Robin I. Gomez– City Manager 

Beverly Burks –Mayor 



        CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 6-29-2021  

 
Tuesday, June 29, 2021 6:30PM 
Via Zoom 
Officials Present by Teleconference/Zoom 
Mayor:  Beverly H. Burks 
Council:  Jamie Carroll, Awet Eyasu, Laura Hopkins 

 Debra Johnson, Ahmed Hassan 
                            City Manager:   Robin I. Gomez  
                                         City Attorney: Stephen Quinn 

                                        City Clerk:     Tracy Ashby 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER  
Mayor Burks called the meeting to order at 7:00pm. 
 

B. ROLL CALL/ PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 Present: Jamie Carroll, Awet Eyasu, Laura Hopkins, Debra Johnson, Mark W. Perkins 
 Ahmed Hassan, 
 
Mark Perkins made a motion to amend the agenda to add an executive session to discuss legal matter. Jamie 
Carroll seconded the motion.  A vote was called and the motion carried (6, 0).  

 
C. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS/ PRESENTATION 

C1) Approve Minutes: Council Meeting 6-1-2021, Special Call 6-22-21 10AM & Special Call/ Work 
Session 6-22-21 6:30PM 
 
Motion: Debra Johnson made a motion to approve the minutes for the Council Meeting 6-1-2021, Special 
Call 6-22-21 10AM & Special Call/ Work Session 6-22-21 at 6:30PM. 
Second:  Jamie Carroll seconded the motion.  
Vote: The vote was called and the motion carried (6, 0).  
 

D. REPORTS:   
1)  Planning & Zoning Report 
Shawanna Qawiy provided highlights on the Comprehensive Plan update and the Zoning Rewrite and she 
discussed the opening of the Starnes Senior Living center. 
 
2)  City Manager’s Report 
Mr. Gomez provide an update on the SPLOST distributions, and the council will receive the Financial report 
thru June 2021 by email. He discussed the Streetscape project and expected completion and a planned 
Ribbon cutting.  The Milam Pool is opened and limited to 100 visitors in 2-hour blocks. He reported that 
Milam pavilions will be open for reservations after July 18. Mr. Gomez encouraged residents to get the 
Covid-19 vaccine and he listed current locations providing the vaccine.  
 
3)  City Attorney’s Report  
No remarks will provide legal report in executive session 
 
4)  Council Remarks 
Jamie Carroll echoed the City Manager’s remarks on getting covid vaccines. He discussed that the new delta 
variant is more transmissible and unvaccinated persons are more susceptible to infections.   
 
Awet Eyasu reported on attending the Juneteenth celebration and Freedom Rights event in opposition to the 
recent election law changes. He discussed the crisis in Ethiopia and his hope for a diplomatic solution. 



        CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 6-29-2021  

 
Debra Johnson discussed the Juneteenth event and thanked everyone for helping make it successful. She 
attended the World Refugee Day event and she was impressed with the event.  She thanked Mr. Patel of 
Fresh Food Town for donating to the Juneteenth event.   
 
Laura Hopkins thanked the Mayor and Debra Johnson for heading the Juneteenth celebration. She attended 
the World Refugee Day event and she discussed the importance of those journeys. 
Thanked Sgt Walker and Koirala when they showed to a crisis event and handled the situation with 
professionalism and compassion.  
 
Mark Perkins read an email appreciating the assistance of City staff with a new resident’s drainage issue.  
He attended webinar on broadband and grant funding in conjunction with ARPA funding and he attended 
GMA District 3 meeting and networked with other cities. He attended the Juneteenth and World Refugee 
Day celebrations.  
 
5)  Mayor’s Report 
Mayor Burks discussed the panel and the Juneteenth event. She also attended the World Refugee Day event. 
She reported on participation on a White House call on Covid.   She discussed the upcoming opening for the 
Tiny Homes and the Nami Mental Health Fair. She is working with Workforce DeKalb to hold a job fair at 
the Community Center on August 11.  
 
 

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
Any member of the public may address the Council, during the time allotted for public comment. Each 
attendee will be allowed 3 minutes for comments at the discretion of the Presiding Officer. The public 
comment period will be limited to 40 minutes and it is not a time for dialogue. If your public comment 
contains a series of questions, please submit those to the City Clerk in writing. This will facilitate follow-up 
by the council or staff. The City Council desires to allow an opportunity for public comment; however, the 
business of the City must proceed in an orderly, timely manner. 
 
Mayor Burks read the public comment policy and she opened Public Comments: 
 
Warren Hadlock discussed opposition to the East Ave variance request and issues with Dawg House 
noncompliance with alcohol sales. He provided comments on Friendship Forest. 
 
Brian Medford spoke on the ease of biking in the City and the success of Juneteenth event. 
 
Susan Hood spoke on the Juneteenth event and she supported repealing the late night alcohol hours.  She 
addressed concerns with the variance request.  
 
Tracy Bishop addressed comments on city events and on previous submitted complaints.  
 
Dean Moore discussed the Juneteenth event.  
 

F.  OLD BUSINESS 
None 

 
G. NEW BUSINESS 

G1) Approve 2021 Millage Rate:   
        a) Presentation 
The City Manager provided a presentation on the proposed 2021 Millage Rate.  



        CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 6-29-2021  

 
        b) Public Hearing to take Public Comment on the 2021 Millage rate  
Mayor Burks opened the public hearing to take public comment on the 2021 millage rate. 
 
Brian Medford supported lowering the millage rate. 
Tracy Bishop spoke in support of lowering the millage rate. 
Dean Moore spoke in support of having a millage rate that allows no shortfalls requiring borrowing funds.   
 
        c) Adopt 2021 Millage Rate by ordinance 
Council discussion to lower the millage rate by one mill to 14.89 or to approve the rollback rate 14.557. 
 
Motion:  Jamie Carroll made a motion to set the 2021 millage rate at 14.89 mills.  
Second: Mark Perkins 
Discussion: Awet Eyasu discussion that this will still represent a tax increase on properties. Mayor Burks 
discussed that the council is voting to reduce the millage rate by one mill to confirm funds are available for 
potential re-assessments. 
Vote:  The vote was called and the motion passed (5, 1). 
Hopkins, Yes 
Carroll Yes 
Johnson Yes 
Hassan Yes 
Perkins Yes 
Eyasu No 
 

       G2) Reschedule August City Council Meeting 
The City Manager detailed the purpose to reschedule the August meeting to not conflict with Council 
Members attending the GMA convention starting August 5th.   
Motion:  Debra Johson motion reschedule the August Council Meeting to Wednesday August 4 2021 
Second:  Mark Perkins 
Vote:  Motion passed unanimously (6,0). 

 
       G3) Issue Call for Election and Set Qualifying period for November General Election 

Mr. Gomez detailed the purpose and recommendation to Issue the Call for the November 2, 2021 General 
Election and to set the qualifying period for the General Election for three (3) days from Monday, August 
16, 2021 until Wednesday, August 18, 2021, starting at 8:30am to 4:30pm (daily), except during a daily 
lunch break from 12:00pm -1:00pm. 
 
Motion:  Debra Johnson made a motion to Issue the Call for the November 2, 2021 General Election and 
to set the qualifying period for the General Election for three (3) days from Monday, August 16, 2021 
until Wednesday, August 18, 2021, starting at 8:30am to 4:30pm (daily), except during a daily lunch 
break from 12:00pm -1:00pm. 
Second:  Jamie Carroll.  
Vote:  Motion passed unanimously (6,0).  

 
       G4) Public Hearing: A conditional use permit request from Mohammad Bilal Khattak for 1353 Brockett 

Road, Suite B-1, Clarkston,  zoned NC-2, Moderate Density Neighborhood Commercial for a laundromat. 
 Shawanna Qawiy detailed the requested variance and the conditions recommended by Staff as well as the 

additional conditions by the Planning & Zoning Board. 
Staff recommends CONDITIONALLY APPROVING the conditional use permit request for a coin 
laundromat with the following 5 conditions. 



        CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 6-29-2021  

1. The business shall only be limited to operating and offering services as a coin laundromat. 
2. There shall be no long term or overnight parking. 
3. The owner/tenant shall adhere to Sections 12-20 Disorderly Conduct and 12-28 Noise. 
4. The business shall not emit noise, vibrations, smoke, gas, fumes, or odors that would be a 
nuisance to the adjacent properties. 
5. The recommended hours of operation are 7AM to 7PM, Sunday-Saturday. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD RECOMMENDATIONS: 06/15/2021 
The Planning and Zoning Board recommended conditionally approving the CUP with staff’s five (5) 
recommendations including four (4) additional conditions. 
(6) No alcohol shall be served or available on the premises. 
(7) No coin operated amusement machines shall be installed. 
(8) All installed machines shall be new. 
(9) The applicant is only allowed to install vending, detergent, and change (coin) machines. 
 
Mayor Burks opened the Public Hearing: 
 
Brian Medford spoke in support of application. 
Dean Moore spoke in support of the conditional use permit request. 
No further public speakers.  Mayor Burks closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Council discussion on the hours of operation and nighttime safety concerns.  Mr. Khattak said he is less 
familiar with the area and is agreeable to whatever conditions the council sets.  
 
Motion:  Awet Eyasu motion approve to approve the conditional use permit with all the staff recommendations 
except #5. 
Second:  Ahmed Hassan  
Discussion: Jamie Carroll asked they clarify if they only using the staff recommendation and not the Planning & 
Zoning recommendations. Clarification of types of amusement machines in the location will be arcade games.  
 
Awet Eyasu amended his motion to include staff recommendations except #5 and the Planning & Zoning 
recommendations except to allow class A amusement machines. 
Second: Jamie Carroll  
Discussion:  Amusement machine types and clarification on not regulating machine type.  
 

Motion: Awet Eyasu withdrew his previous motion. 
 

Motion: Awet Eyasu made a motion to approve the conditional use permit with the staff recommendations 1-4 
and the Planning & Zoning Board recommendations shall be served or available on the premises and all 
installed machines shall be new. 
Second: Ahmed Hassan 
Discussion: Further discussion on coam machines and the State law.  
Vote: Motion passed unanimously (6,0). 

 
 
G5) Public Hearing: Variance requests from William R. Braswell Jr. of Oak Hall Companies, LLC for   
the property located at 3809 East Avenue 



        CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 6-29-2021  

Shawanna Qawiy, reported that no action is needed as the applicant has requested to defer this item to the 
August 4, 2021 Council Meeting. 
 
G6) Approve SPLOST Project 04-B+C Trailhead/Mell Ave/Rowland St Temporary Easement 
Agreements   
The City Manager detailed that per the City’s approved SPLOST Project 04-B+C the Trailhead/Mell 
Ave/Rowland St street improvements 
that will include milling, asphalting, road diets, easabouts, sidewalks, etc., we have obtained approvals 
from five (5) private property owners to work partially on their driveway or similar areas to complete said 
work. 
These are non-compensatory easements at driveways for driveway reconstruction purposes (working 
outside city ROW), to match up with the street work. Easements disappear after construction is complete. 
Contractor will work within ROW where we can, but will end up performing some work on the private 
property area mainly driveways. 
 
Motion:  Mark Perkins made a motion approve SPLOST Project 04-B+C Trailhead/Mell Ave/Rowland St 
Temporary Easement Agreements   
Second:  Debra Johnson 
Vote:  Motion passed unanimously (6,0). 
 

 G7) Consider DeKalb Regional Land Bank 
Mr. Gomez and the City Attorney stated no additional information has been provided from DeKalb 
County to re-establish the Land Bank. Discussion that the City does not have any significant developable 
land that would fit with the land bank but to leave the item open for future consideration ask the City 
Attorney to follow up with DeKalb.   
 
Motion:  Mark Perkins made a motion to postpone the consideration of joining the DeKalb Regional land 
bank until  the city attorney can contact DeKalb attorneys and remove concerns.  
Second:  Awet Eyasu 
Vote:   Motion passed unanimously (6,0). 

 
 G8) Repeal Ordinance 19-433 to remove late Night Sales of alcohol from restaurants 
 Mr. Gomez discussed continual issues with complaints and violations to ordinance requirements including 
noise, not operating as a bonifide restaurant by not serving the required meals, not having required officer 
during late hours.  One business made attempted to remediate complaints but falls back into 
noncompliance and the other business has numerous violations with no compliance efforts.  
Council discussion on the proposed repeal and that late hour sales has not benefited the city.  City 
Attorney advised the Council to also confirm an effective date for the repeal ordinance. Council 
discussion on a transition period for the repeal.  

 
Motion:  Debra Johnson made a motion to repeal Ordinance 19-433 Effective August 1, 2021. 
Second:  Laura Hopkins  
Discussion of extending the termination date of the repeal to 45 days. 
Vote:  A vote called motion passed (Yes- 3,No- 1,Abstain- 2) 
Hopkins yes 
Carroll No 
Johnson yes 
Perkins yes 
Hassan abstain 
Eyasu abstain 

 



        CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 6-29-2021  

 G9) Adopt Resolution Authorizing, Among Other Things, the Issuance and Sale of a Tax Anticipation 
Note in the Principal Amount of $500,000 
The City Manager detailed Clarkston will receive approximately 60% of our total anticipated revenue 
for fiscal year 2021 between the months of September and December. The majority of this revenue 
comes from property taxes, insurance premium payments and municipal court fines. The bulk of this 
revenue; property taxes and insurance premium payments, is received during the months of September, 
October and November. Staff has received a quote from BB&T/Truist Bank for the issuance of a Tax 
Anticipation Note in the amount of $500,000 with an interest rate of 2.09% and an anticipated closing date 
of July 15, 2021. This is a short term loan with full payment due of principal and interest on December 31, 
2021. The interest rate charged on the principal balance will be 2.09% annually amortized over 168 days. 
Accordingly, the interest payments to BB&T will be approximately $4,810. Additionally, issuance of a 
TAN requires preparation of the TAN resolution and other associated legal documents by a bond attorney. 
The fee for the bond attorney will be $5,000. 

 
Motion:  Debra Johnson made a motion to adopt the Resolution Authorizing, Among Other Things, the 
Issuance and Sale of a Tax Anticipation Note in the Principal Amount of $500,000 
Second:  Laura Hopkins 
Vote:  Motion passed unanimously (6,0) 

 
G10) Repeal Mask Mandate Ordinance 
Jamie Carroll stated that this ordinance was enacted when there was no vaccine readily available.  Now 
that vaccines are available request to repeal for private businesses and support CDC recommendations for 
masks and to keep masking for City buildings. Council discussion on the mask requirement and 
confirmation that no one had ever been cited on the ordinance. Discussion that rates for covid are going up 
in Clarkston and the continued risks to allowing unmasked persons to go inside City buildings.  
 
Motion:  Laura Hopkins made a motion to roll back the mask mandate to only apply to City public buildings 
and to make the recommendation for private businesses for people to  wear mask inside but that would be a 
recommendation only; the mandate would only apply to public buildings: city hall, courtrooms, council 
meetings.  
Second:  Jamie Carroll  
Discussion on removing the fine. 
Vote:  Motion passed (4-Yes: Carroll, Hopkins, Johnson, Perkins, 1-No: Hassan, 1-Abstain: Eyasu) 
 
G11) Consider adding a new SAC for Business & Economic Development Committee SAC 
Mark Perkins spoke on the request to modify two committees instead of creating a new committee.  The  
Community Development Committee would change to Community Development and Civic Innovation 
Committee.  The Marketing and Civic Innovation Committee would change to Business, Marketing and 
Economic Innovation Committee.  Discussion of chairs for the  committees  
 
 
Motion:  Jamie Carroll motion to rename the Marketing Committee to Business, Marketing and Economic 
Innovation Committee, with Mark Perkins and Ahmed Hassan as co-chairs, and rename the Community 
Development Committee to Community Development and Civic Innovation Committee. 
Second:  Ahmed Hassan  
Vote:  Motion Passed unanimously (6,0)  
 
G12) Consider Alcohol package application for Fresh Food Town LLC, 4604 E Ponce de Leon Ave 
The City manager reported that City staff have reviewed the application and recommended approval for 
Fresh Food Town alcohol beverage, license for Beer/Wine/Malt beverages.  
 



        CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 6-29-2021  

Motion:  Mark Perkins motion to approve Alcohol package application for Fresh Food Town LLC, 4604 E 
Ponce de Leon Ave.  
Second:  Jamie Carroll 
Vote: The vote was called and the motion passed (4 -Yes: Carroll, Hopkins, Johnson, Perkins, 0-No, 2 
Abstain: Hassan, Eyasu)  
 
G13) Council to Recommend City Website Redesign Firm 
Mr. Gomez discussed the three design firms that had presented at the Work Session.  He confirmed that any 
of the three would do a good job for the city. 
 
Council discussion on the three firms and the best firm based on City needs and fees.   
 
Motion:  Mark Perkins made a motion to recommend VC3 for city website redesign firm. 
Second:  Awet Eyasu.   
Vote:  Motion passed unanimously (6,0). 
 

H. Added Executive Session to Discuss a Legal Matter 
Motion:  Awet Eyasu made a motion go into executive session to discuss a legal matter. 
Second:  Debra Johnson 
Vote: A vote was called and passed unanimously 6,0 
 
Ahmed Hassan left the executive session (11:50pm).  
 
Adjourn executive session and go into the open session.   
Motion: Laura Hopkins made a motion to adjourn the executive session and go into open session.  
Second: Jamie Carroll 
Vote; Approve unanimously (5,0) 
 

I. ADJOURNMENT:  
Motion:  Laura Hopkins made amotion to adjourn the meeting.  
Second:  Mark Perkins  
Vote:  Motion passed unanimously (5,0).  

  
        Meeting adjourned: 12:10AM 



COUNCIL WORK SESSION 7-27-21
WORK SESSION MINUTES 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL 
Tuesday, July 27, 2021 
Via Zoom 
Officials Present by Teleconference/Zoom 
Mayor:  Beverly H. Burks 
Council: Jamie Carroll, Awet Eyasu, Laura Hopkins 
Debra Johnson, Ahmed Hassan 
City Manager: Robin I. Gomez 
City Clerk: Tracy Ashby  
City Attorney: Stephen Quinn 

A. ROLL CALL
Mayor Burks, Awet Eyasu, Ahmed Hassan, Laura Hopkins, Debra Johnson, Jamie Carroll, Mark W.
Perkins

B. WORK SESSION - RESIDENT COMMENT POLICY
Any member of the public may address questions or comments to the Council referencing only
agenda items after the Mayor and Council have had the opportunity to discuss the agenda item.
Each Attendee will be allowed 3 minutes for comments.

C. PRESENTATION/ ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS NEW BUSINESS
None

D. OLD BUSINESS
D1) Public Hearing: Variance requests from William R. Braswell Jr. of Oak Hall Companies,
LLC for   the property located at 3809 East Avenue (Applicant requested deferment)
Request from Tad Braswell for variance requests to install ornamental trees in lieu
of shade trees for solar panels and to encroach into the front yard setback an additional 5 feet
on lots 7-30.
A variance request from the terms of the ordinance must not be contrary to the public and must
be evaluated based on the 6 criteria points. A variance may be granted in an individual case of
unnecessary hardship upon a finding by the city council that all of the following conditions exist:
1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular piece of
property in question because of its size, shape, or topography.
2. Such conditions are peculiar to the particular piece of property involved.
3. Such conditions are not the result of the actions of the applicant.
4. A literal interpretation of the provisions of this ordinance would create an unnecessary
hardship.
5. The variance requested will not cause substantial detriment to the public good nor impair
the purposes or intent of the zoning ordinance.
6. The variance is not a request to permit a structure or use of land not authorized in the
applicable district.

The applicant requested a deferment from the June meeting and provided additional documents.  

Public Speaker(s): Brian Medford, Victoria Webb, Warren Hadlock 



COUNCIL WORK SESSION 7-27-21 
 

E. NEW BUSINESS 
E1) Alcohol Application – RR Property Group LLC dba Thriftown  
The Alcohol Review Committee (ARC) has received and reviewed an ownership change 
application for alcohol beverage package store for Beer/Wine/Malt Beverages. The location to be 
considered for this alcohol beverage license is Thriftown located at 926 Montreal Road, Suite 3A.. 
NEED/ IMPACT: The new owner RR Property Group LLC D/B/A/ Thriftown at 926 Montreal Road, 
Suite 3A has made application for an alcohol beverage, license for Beer/Wine/Malt beverages for 
retail package sales. To date: all of the required inspections have been performed and the required 
background check has been passed. Code Compliance Officer Shennetha Smith has reviewed the 
application and has measured the location and found it does meet minimum distances as defined by 
the Code. 
The applicant Subata Khan spoke on the request. 
Public Speaker(s): Brian Medford, 
 
E2) Discuss Market St Sidewalk Construction Options 
To discuss two (2) options for the contracting of the Market St Sidewalk and Carroll Park Dr Paving SPLOST 
construction project: 
(1) Adopt a Change Order to utilize existing contract with Rowland/Hill/Rogers/PATH contractor, 
(2) Advertise via a formal construction project bid process. 
 
The June 2021 Council Worksession included discussion on the proposed Market St sidewalk (from City Hall 
Annex to City line/end of Market St), in which the City Engineering firm (Collaborative Infrastructure 
Service-CIS) presented design plans for two alternatives for sidewalk placement on Market Street. 
The two plans: 
OPTION #1 - Place sidewalk partially on the road, which reduces the road width from 24 feet to 21 feet, add 
an 18 inch grass beauty strip and relocate the existing granite curb. Very similar to the Rowland St project 
(North Indian Creek to Lovejoy). Sidewalk would begin on the Annex parcel and connect to a new crosswalk 
at Market Street. 
OPTION #2 – Place sidewalk behind the existing curb with a 18 inch beauty strip and reset the existing granite 
curb to improve street drainage 
 
The City Manager updated the Council that after review and consideration, this item will be 
handled thru a RFP process. 
 
Public Speaker(s): Brian Medford, Warren Hadlock 
 
E3)  Discuss an Electric Vehicle (EV) charging station license agreement with Georgia Power to 
install electric vehicle charging stations in the City of Clarkston. 
Georgia Power and City staff reviewed and discussed the installation of various EV charging 
stations on City property. The recommended location to install two (2) charging stations is the 2 
eastern most parking spaces adjacent to the City Hall/Police Station Market St driveway entrance. 
The location is optimal due to its proximity to our City Center, the PATH, and the Clarkston 
Police Station (safety) which is well lit and under 24-hour camera surveillance. 
Georgia Power will have access to the premises for construction, installation, maintenance, 
repair, operation and use for the charging station with customers having access to the area 24 
hours, 7 days a week. GPC shall have the exclusive right to provide vehicle charging and support 
services to drivers of electric plug-in vehicles and EV-charging-related services at the premises at 
no cost to the public. The City will provide the space to GA Power also at no cost (no revenue to 
the City). 
The electric plug-in vehicles license agreement is an irrevocable 10-year commitment. 
 
Public Speaker(s): Brian Medford, Warren Hadlock, Dean Moore 
 



COUNCIL WORK SESSION 7-27-21 
E4) Women’s Equality Day Proclamation  
To discuss Women’s Equality Day Proclamation 
Public Speaker(s): None 
 
E5) National Senior Citizens Day Proclamation  
To discuss National Senior Citizens Day Proclamation 
 
Public Speaker(s): None 
 
E6) 50th Anniversary of the 26th Amendment Proclamation  
To discuss 50th Anniversary of the 26th Amendment Proclamation 
 
Public Speaker(s): Christyna Reagan, Dean Moore 
 
 
E7) Discuss a resolution to encourage the DOT to add sound barriers between 285 and the city 
when they add an extra lane   
To discuss adopting a resolution to encourage the DOT to add sound barriers between 285 and the 
city when they add an extra lane. 
 
Public Speaker(s): Dean Moore, Brian Medford 
 
 
Amend Agenda E8) Gift cards for covid shots (Jamie Carroll) 
Jamie Carroll discussed designating $10K of ARPA funding to purchase $50 gift cards to 
distribute at the vaccination sites. 
 
Public Speaker(s): Dean Moore 
 
 

F. ADJOURNMENT  
Meeting Adjourned. 8:47p 

 
 



 
 

  
 

CITY OF CLARKSTON 
 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 
 

MEETING DATE: August 4, 2021 
 
 
SUBJECT: Variance requests for the property located at 3809 East Avenue, Clarkston, Ga. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
PURPOSE: A request from Tad Braswell for variance requests to install ornamental trees in lieu 
of shade trees for solar panels and to encroach into the front yard setback an additional 5 feet 
on lots 7-30.  

 
NEED/ IMPACT:   
A variance request from the terms of the ordinance must not be contrary to the public and must 
be evaluated based on the 6 criteria points. A variance may be granted in an individual case of 
unnecessary hardship upon a finding by the city council that all of the following conditions exist: 
1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular piece of 

property in question because of its size, shape, or topography. 
2. Such conditions are peculiar to the particular piece of property involved. 
3. Such conditions are not the result of the actions of the applicant. 
4. A literal interpretation of the provisions of this ordinance would create an unnecessary 

hardship. 
5. The variance requested will not cause substantial detriment to the public good nor impair 

the purposes or intent of the zoning ordinance. 
6. The variance is not a request to permit a structure or use of land not authorized in the 

applicable district. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends denying the variance requests.  

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 06/15/2021 
The Planning and Zoning Board recommends denying the variance requests.  

ITEM NO: F1 

ACTION TYPE: 
Variance Request 

HEARING TYPE:  
 WS: 6/22/21 
  PH: 6/29/21- 
  DEFERRED until 7/27/21 WS 
   PH: 8/4/21 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT: 
 Planning/Economic  & Development 

ATTACHMENTS:  YES   NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING:  YES     NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:   
Shawanna Qawiy, Planning Economic  and 
Dev. Director 
PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   



 
 

  
 

 
ADDITIONAL NOTES: The applicant requested a deferment until the July 27th  2021 Mayor and 
City Council work session and to amend one (1) of the variance requests to withdraw the request 
to install ornamental trees in lieu of shade trees.  





S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

SS

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

SS

S
S

S
S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

20' SETBACK

5' SIDE YARD 5' SIDE YARD5' SIDE YARD

5' SIDE YARD 5' SIDE YARD5' SIDE YARD

15' FRONT YARD

15
' F

RO
NT

 Y
AR

D

15' FRONT YARD

ROAD A

ROAD A

AL
LE

Y 
B

AL
LE

Y 
C

EN
TR

AN
CE

10' TRAVEL

EASEMENT

30.00'

30' CONSTRUCTION

EASEMENT

40'  UTILITY

AND ACCESS

EASEMENT

2
5
'
 
U

T
I
L
I
T

Y
 
A

N
D

 
A

C
C

E
S

S

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

2
5
'
 
 
U

T
I
L
I
T

Y
 
A

N
D

 
A

C
C

E
S

S

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

OPEN
SPACE

OPEN
SPACE

WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL

20' SSE

20' DE

10' DE

10
' D

E

10' DE

20
' S

SE

10' DE

20' DE

20' DE

10' DE

10
' D

E

20' SSE

20' SSE

20' SSE
20

' S
SE

20
' S

SE

20
' S

SE

75'

50'

25'

25'

75'

50'

25'
50'

75'

20' DE

20' DE
20

' R
EA

R 
YA

RD

20
' R

EA
R 

YA
RD

15
' F

RO
NT

 Y
AR

D

15
' F

RO
NT

 Y
AR

D

15
' F

RO
NT

 Y
AR

D

20
' R

EA
R 

YA
RD

20
' R

EA
R 

YA
RD

15
' F

RO
NT

 Y
AR

D

15
' F

RO
NT

 Y
AR

D

20
' R

EA
R 

YA
RD

20
' R

EA
R 

YA
RD

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

4
0
'

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y
 
A

N
D

 
A

C
C

E
S

S

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

4
0
'

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y
 
A

N
D

 
A

C
C

E
S

S

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

40
.0

0'

40
.0

0'

40
.0

0'

40
.0

0'

40'  UTILITY

AND ACCESS

EASEMENT

40'  UTILITY

AND ACCESS

EASEMENT

40'  UTILITY

AND ACCESS

EASEMENT

137°'

90
°'

20' PRIVATE UTILITY EASEMENT

1

2 3
4 5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

1819

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31
32

33

34

35
36

WH

45.00'

33
.0

0'

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

W
H

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

25.48'
25.51'

20.46'

20.35'

20.40'

20.35'
20.40'

27
.1

0'

25
.1

5'

26
.6

2'

25
.8

8'

WH

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

J

K

L

16

16

L

K

J

I

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

O
W

N
ER

:
PR

O
JE

C
T

: G
A

R
D

EN
S 

O
F 

EA
ST

 A
V

EN
U

E
(F

K
A

 C
LA

R
K

ST
O

N
 T

R
A

C
T

)

LA
N

D
 L

O
T

: 6
7 

&
 9

6,
 18

T
H

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

C
LA

R
K

ST
O

N
 D

EK
A

LB
 C

O
U

N
T

Y 
G

EO
R

G
IA

M
MCFARLAND-DYER

& ASSOCIATES, INC.

DA
4174 Silver Peak Parkway

Suwanee, Georgia 30024
Phone (770) 932-6550

Fax (770) 932-6551

WWW.GOMDA.NET

JOB NO: 18-0316
DRAWN BY: SR
CHECKED BY: JN

COPYRIGHT 2019
McFARLAND-DYER
& ASSOCIATES, INC.

06-23-2021     EXHIBIT SITE PLAN

DATE DESCRIPTION

O
H

C
 C

LA
R

K
ST

O
N

, L
LC

52
56

 P
EA

C
H

T
R

EE
 R

O
A

D
SU

IT
E 

19
5

A
T

LA
N

T
A

, G
EO

R
G

IA
 3

03
41

C-1.0

SITE
PLAN

1 INCH = 30 FT.

GRAPHIC SCALE

( IN FEET )

30 0 30 60

GRID NORTH
GA WEST ZONE

NOTE: THE POST CONSTRUCTION CURVE NUMBER
FOR THIS SITE IS CALCAULATED TO BE 72.9. THE
CURVE NUMBER USED FOR DESIGN WAS 77.
THEREFORE, THE STORMWATER SYSTEM DESIGN
AND INSTALLATION IS MORE THAN ADEQUATE FOR
THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT.

NOTE: ALL DRIVEWAYS, SIDEWALKS AND PATIOS
SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF PERVIOUS
MATERIALS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.69' ALONG THE RIGHT OF WAY TO THE RIGHT OF WAY OF MARKET ST., A.K.A. McLENDON AVENUE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" REBAR FOUND-BENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" REBAR FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
34" OTP FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" BAR FOUND-BENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
420.11'  S01°03'46"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
526.13'  S89°47'39"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
263.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
263.07'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89%%D47'39"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
90.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89%%D47'39"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text
L6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L7

AutoCAD SHX Text
L8

AutoCAD SHX Text
L9

AutoCAD SHX Text
L10

AutoCAD SHX Text
L11

AutoCAD SHX Text
L12

AutoCAD SHX Text
L13

AutoCAD SHX Text
L14

AutoCAD SHX Text
L15

AutoCAD SHX Text
L16

AutoCAD SHX Text
L17

AutoCAD SHX Text
L18

AutoCAD SHX Text
L19

AutoCAD SHX Text
L20

AutoCAD SHX Text
L21

AutoCAD SHX Text
L22

AutoCAD SHX Text
L23

AutoCAD SHX Text
L24

AutoCAD SHX Text
L25

AutoCAD SHX Text
L26

AutoCAD SHX Text
L27

AutoCAD SHX Text
L28

AutoCAD SHX Text
L29

AutoCAD SHX Text
L30

AutoCAD SHX Text
L31

AutoCAD SHX Text
L32

AutoCAD SHX Text
L33

AutoCAD SHX Text
L34

AutoCAD SHX Text
L35

AutoCAD SHX Text
L36

AutoCAD SHX Text
L37

AutoCAD SHX Text
LL 96

AutoCAD SHX Text
LL 95

AutoCAD SHX Text
LL 67

AutoCAD SHX Text
LL 68

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL OF CREEK IS PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL OF CREEK IS PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF CLARKSTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
370.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01%%D03'46"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEKALB COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF CLARKSTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEKALB COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F ADRYA M. STEMBRIDGE DB 21868, PG 443 ZONING: NR-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBDIVIDED AS: STONEVIEW PLACE, UNIT TWO PB 84, PG 37 ZONING: R-85

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F DEKALB COUNTY (STONEVIEW PARK) ZONING: R-85

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP/LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP/LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV  MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' STREAM BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT  DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV 955.33    

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV 955.01    

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV 954.33    

AutoCAD SHX Text
TW:959.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
TW:960.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN(3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.  DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY BM 1/2" REBAR FOUND N: 1383955.30 E: 2276340.66 EL:    961.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F ROBERT A. & HAZEL A. POE REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST DB 26415, PG 206 (CITY OF CLARKSTON- PER DEKALB COUNTY GIS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE FLOOD LIMIT PER SCANNED FEMA MAP FM 13089C0086J, DATED 05-16-2013

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' UNDISTURBED STREAM BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
75' IMPERVIOUS SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SNAPFINGER CREEK TRIBUTARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBDIVIDED AS: BELLE GLADE ESTATES PB 40, PG 124

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST AVENUE (40' R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPLAR DRIVE (40' R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' STREAM BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' UNDISTURBED STREAM BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
75' IMPERVIOUS SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'-0"x10'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x16'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'-0"x10'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x16'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'-0"x21'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0" CANTILEVER ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
17'-4"x11'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13'-6"x16'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0" CANTILEVER ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
17'-4"x11'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13'-6"x16'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0" CANTILEVER ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
17'-4"x11'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13'-6"x16'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'-0"x16'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x16'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DROP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'-0"x16'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x16'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DROP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'-0"x10'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x16'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'-0"x10'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x16'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'-0"x21'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0" CANTILEVER ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
17'-4"x11'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13'-6"x16'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0" CANTILEVER ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
17'-4"x11'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13'-6"x16'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0" CANTILEVER ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
17'-4"x11'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13'-6"x16'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'-0"x16'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x16'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DROP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'-0"x16'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x16'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DROP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'-0"x10'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x16'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'-0"x10'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x16'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'-0"x21'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0" CANTILEVER ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
17'-4"x11'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13'-6"x16'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0" CANTILEVER ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
17'-4"x11'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13'-6"x16'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
COATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0" CANTILEVER ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
17'-4"x11'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13'-6"x16'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'-0"x16'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x16'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DROP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'-0"x16'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x16'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DROP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.I.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M. BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
42"x42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-8"x16'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.I.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M. BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
42"x42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-8"x16'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.I.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M. BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
42"x42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-8"x16'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.I.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M. BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
42"x42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-8"x16'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.I.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M. BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
42"x42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 CAR GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-0"x10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-8"x16'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE MAKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT  CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3450.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3780.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.087

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3780.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.087

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3780.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.087

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3780.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.087

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
3248.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.075

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3391.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.078

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
3391.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.078

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
3391.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.078

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
3440.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.079

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
3391.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.078

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
5025.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.115

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
5025.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.115

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
5025.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.115

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
5025.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.115

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
5025.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.115

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
5025.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.115

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT #

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
964

AutoCAD SHX Text
1210

AutoCAD SHX Text
1210

AutoCAD SHX Text
1210

AutoCAD SHX Text
1210

AutoCAD SHX Text
964

AutoCAD SHX Text
1521

AutoCAD SHX Text
1462

AutoCAD SHX Text
1521

AutoCAD SHX Text
1462

AutoCAD SHX Text
1462

AutoCAD SHX Text
1521

AutoCAD SHX Text
1462

AutoCAD SHX Text
1521

AutoCAD SHX Text
1521

AutoCAD SHX Text
1462

AutoCAD SHX Text
1521

AutoCAD SHX Text
1462

AutoCAD SHX Text
1462

AutoCAD SHX Text
1521

AutoCAD SHX Text
1462

AutoCAD SHX Text
1521

AutoCAD SHX Text
1521

AutoCAD SHX Text
1462

AutoCAD SHX Text
1521

AutoCAD SHX Text
1462

AutoCAD SHX Text
1462

AutoCAD SHX Text
1521

AutoCAD SHX Text
1462

AutoCAD SHX Text
1521

AutoCAD SHX Text
1983

AutoCAD SHX Text
1983

AutoCAD SHX Text
1983

AutoCAD SHX Text
1983

AutoCAD SHX Text
1983

AutoCAD SHX Text
1983

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPERVIOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
40



Zoning Conditions for 3827, 3835 and 3861 East Avenue: 

1. The property will generally be developed substantially as depicted on the attached 
conceptual site plan dated May 7, 2019, particularly as to the depicted site configuration 
and vegetated buffers. Such conceptual site plan is attached hereto and labeled as Exhibit 
“B.” See Site Plan 

2. The site shall have no more than thirty-six (36) single family cottage-style homes. See 
Site Plan 

3. None of the homes will have more than three (3) bedrooms. All Home Plans will be 
permitted by the City and will have no more than 3 bedrooms. 

4. The building materials for the homes shall be a mixture of real brick, stone or hardi-plank 
siding.  No vinyl siding shall be allowed. All Home Plans will be permitted by the City 
and will have no vinyl siding. 

5. All homes will be wired to be electric vehicle and solar ready. All Home Plans will be 
permitted by the City and will be wired for an electric car charger and solar ready. 

6. The driveways and sidewalks of each unit shall be a pervious material. See Site Plan. 
7. The outlet structure for the storm water system and the location of the storm water 

facilities shall be substantially the same as depicted on the plans attached hereto and 
labeled as Exhibit “C,” subject to approval by the City’s engineer.  Developer shall work 
with the City’s engineer to ensure that adequate erosion control measures are provided to 
protect the streams.  See attached pictures. 

8. A majority of the trees planted on the site will be of a native species.  No non-native 
species will be planted on common areas of the property.  No more than two (2) accent 
trees, such as Japanese Maples, may be planted in each individual yard.  See approved 
Tree replacement Plan. 

9. Developer shall grant to the City a 10’ permanent easement and a 30’ construction 
easement for the future construction of a trail system near the northeast corner of the 
property as shown on the conceptual site plan attached as Exhibit B.  Such easement shall 
be located such that it does not encroach within the required 75’stream buffer of 
Snapfinger Creek.  The easement is reflected on the approved LDP plans and will be 
on the recorded Final Plat. 

10. The developer shall donate $40,000 to the Clarkston Affordable Housing Trust or the 
Clarkston Environmental Trust, at the City’s election, prior to recording the Final Plat.  
Will be paid next month. 

11. The developer is required to adhere to all development reviews required by the City of 
Clarkston including, but not limited to, for the land disturbance permit, landscape and 
tree replacement plans. See approved LDP plans 

12. The developer shall adhere to all reviews as required by outside agencies with 
jurisdiction over the property, including but not limited to, DeKalb County Fire 
Marshal’s office, DeKalb County Water and Sewer Department and the Georgia Soil and 
Water Conservation Commission.   Plans were approved by all required departments 
prior to the issuance of the LDP. 



13. All lots developed at the property shall be subjected by restrictive covenant to 
participation in a mandatory homeowners’ association (“HOA”) as described by these 
conditions.  All HOA documents will be approved by the Planning Department prior 
to the recording of the Final Plat 

14. A maximum of three (3) of the homes may be rented or non-owner occupied at any given 
time.  This restriction shall be included in the HOA governing documents and be binding 
upon all home owners. All HOA documents will be approved by the Planning 
Department prior to the recording of the Final Plat 

15. The HOA shall have a professional engineer inspect the storm water facilities and prepare 
a report on such facility’s condition bi-annually.  This report shall be promptly submitted 
to the city manager.  All HOA documents will be approved by the Planning 
Department prior to the recording of the Final Plat 

16. The HOA shall be managed by a third-party manager employed by the HOA Board of 
Directors.  All HOA documents will be approved by the Planning Department prior 
to the recording of the Final Plat 

17. The developer shall provide a copy of the HOA documents to the city for review and 
approval prior to recording.  The documents shall include the following requirements: 

a. All landscaped areas, including those located on individual lots, shall be 
maintained by the HOA. 

b. All streets shall be private and maintained by the HOA. 
c. There shall be an Architectural Review Board.  This ARB shall be chaired by the 

developer until 51% of all the homes are constructed.  Standards or revisions to 
any structure shall be approved by the ARB. 

d. The Developer shall remain the Declarant until 100% of the homes have been sold. 
e. Any change to the management structure of the Board will have to be approved by 

the Homeowners Association Board of Directors.  The HOA will always be 
managed by a third party management company. All HOA documents will be 
approved by the Planning Department prior to the recording of the Final Plat 

18. Prior to selling any lots, developer shall convey to the City an access easement for 
inspection (not maintenance) of the storm water facilities on the property.  The HOA 
shall maintain such facilities. The easement is reflected on the approved LDP plans 
and will be on the recorded Final Plat.  All HOA documents will be approved by the 
Planning Department prior to the recording of the Final Plat. 

19. Every home shall have a minimum of one visitor parking space to be located behind each 
home’s carport.  See Site Plan 

20. Common areas shall be jointly owned by the owners of the individual parcels.  This is 
reflected on the LDP Plans and will be shown on the Final Plat. 

21. Yards along the exterior shall include an opaque, vegetated landscaped buffer on the 
sides that abut other residential properties.  See approved Tree Replacement Plan 

22. Final plat with covenants shall be submitted, reviewed, accepted and recorded before 
construction begins. Recording of the covenants and final plat shall create a separate lot 



for each dwelling place and subjects each lot in the development to private deed 
covenants that assure the continuance of the approved plan as submitted with the required 
maintenance of the common areas. All HOA documents will be approved by the 
Planning Department prior to the recording of the Final Plat. 

23. The city manager (in consultation with an appropriate expert) shall review and approve 
the landscape plan for compliance with “regenerative landscaping” principles.  Builder/ 
Developers Landscape Architect will work with the City Manager to insure 
compliance of this condition. 

24. All lots created on the property shall conform with the required dimensions and other 
development controls applicable in the NR-3 zoning district, unless a variance is granted 
by the City.  See approved LDP Plans. 
 

 

 

 



    
 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 
MEETING 

MINUTES 
 
 

 
 

  
 

 

   AGENDA 

  June 15, 2021, 7:00 PM     
TELECONFERENCE 
       Call in Number: 
          404. 902. 5066 
          Call in Code: 
                326629 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER: The meeting was called to order at 7:04PM 
 

B. ROLL CALL: Chair Charles McFarland, Vice Chair Felicia Weinert, Birendra Dhakal, Lisa 
Williams, Susan Hood 

 
C. APPROVAL OF APRIL 2021 MEETING MINUTES: Charles McFarland called for a 

motion to approve the April 2021 meeting minutes. Lisa Williams made a motion to approve, 
Felicia Weinert seconded, and the motion passed 5/0/0. 

 
D. NEW BUSINESS 

1. PUBLIC HEARING: A conditional use permit request from Mohammad Bilal Khattak for the 
property located at 1353 Brockett Road, Suite B-1, Clarkston, Georgia 30021, zoned NC-2, 
Moderate Density Neighborhood Commercial for a  laundromat. 
 
PED Director Qawiy gave an overview of the conditional use permit request for 1353 
Brockett Road, Suite B-1 and introduced the applicant Mr. Mohammad Khattak. 
Charles McFarland asked for questions from the Board members for the applicant. Birendra 
Dhakal asked the applicant whether his establishment will be use eco-friendly detergents. 
Mr. Khattak responded that he would limit his use of detergents to Tide and Gain.  
 
Felicia Weinert asked the applicant about his recent approval for a conditional use permit 
for a coin laundromat at 1051 Montreal Road. Mr. Khattak stated in summary there were  
landlord issues. Ms. Weinert asked him to confirm whether or not he will encounter 
landlord issues at the present location. Mr. Khattak confirmed there would not be any issues 
with the current landlord.  
 
Charles McFarland asked the applicant did he have any issues with the staff’s 
recommended hours of operation of 7AM-7PM Sunday-Saturday.  Mr. Khattak did not 
have any issues with the hours.   Ms. Weinert stated that the recommended hours of 
operation were recommended for safety of the patrons of the business. Mr. Khattak stated 
that he will lock the doors of the business at 7PM each day. 
 



Susan Hood asked the applicant whether he is considering coin operated amusement 
machines(COAM) in the establishment.  Mr. Khattak stated that he was contemplating the 
matter and understands that COAM machines attracts a different  type of traffic.  He stated 
that the final answer would be not to install COAM machines. Ms. Hood stated that she 
would add this as a condition to the list of staff’s conditions to not allow COAM at this 
location. Mr. Khattak agreed.  
 
Lisa Williams asked whether the applicant will use eco-friendly detergent and install 
energy saving machines and not used machines.  Mr. Khattak stated that he will install all 
new machines that include LED lights.  
 
Birendra Dhakal asked about parking. Mr. Khattak stated that the landlord will designate 
8 spaces in front of the business and share the additional 2 in the parking lot area.  
 
With no further questions from the Board, Charles McFarland opened the public hearing.   
 
Dean Moore stated that no alcohol should be served or available on the premises and asked 
to include the request in the conditions.  
 
With no additional speakers or questions the public hearing was closed by Chairman 
McFarland.  
 
Chairman McFarland asked for a motion. Susan Hood made the motion to approve the 
conditional use permit request with the five (5) listed conditions from staff and to include 
(6) No alcohol shall be served or available on the premises, (7) No coin operated 
amusement machines shall be installed, (8) All installed machines shall be new,  and (9)The 
applicant is only allowed to install  vending, detergent and change (coin) machines. 
Birendra Dhakal seconded, and the motion passed 5/0/0. 
 
 

2. PUBLIC HEARING: Variance requests from William R. Braswell Jr.  of Oak Hall Companies, 
LLC for the property located at 3809 East Avenue, Clarkston,  Georgia 30021,  zoned NR-3 High 
Density Neighborhood Residential to “install ornamental trees in lieu of shade trees for solar 
panels”  and to encroach into the front yard setback an additional 5 feet on lots 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 
13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, and 30.  

          
             PED Director gave an overview of the variance requests for 3809 East Avenue and 

 introduced the applicant Mr. Tad Braswell.   
 
Lisa Williams asked a question related to the request to install ornamental trees in lieu of 
shade trees.  Ms. Williams stated that with the current 24 conditions on the property 
condition #5 states that all homes will be wired to be electric and solar ready. Ms. Williams 
asked the applicant to confirm the lots solar ratings. Mr. Braswell stated that solar ratings 
on the lots have not yet been established.  
 
Susan Hood referenced the applicants statement that he would prefer to plant crepe myrtles 
as the ornamental trees.  Ms. Hood stated that crepe myrtles are not native trees, but red 
bud trees are native trees.  
 
Ms. Weinert asked about the size of the proposed homes at a minimum of 1200 sq. ft.  Mr. 
Braswell stated that the minimum size home will be 1800 square feet.   
 



Susan Hood asked whether the homes will be constructed with carports or garages. Mr. 
Braswell stated that lots 7-30 will have garages while the exterior lots will have carports. 
Ms. Hood made a reference to condition #19 that every home shall have a minimum of one 
visitor parking space to be located behind each home’s carport.  Mr. Braswell stated that 
he is requesting an additional 5 feet encroachment since the city ordinance allows a 3’ 
encroachment for porches.  Parking will be located between the garage and the alley.  
 
Birendra Dhakal asked whether the variance requests are due to an undue hardship.  
 
Lisa Williams stated that the requests should be based on the variance criteria points.  
 
Susan Hood stated that the applicant has not been met the criteria points which does not 
warrant approval of the variance requests.  
 
With no further questions from the Board, Charles McFarland opened the public hearing.   
 
Dean Moore stated that there are six ( 6) criteria for variance requests and any hardships 
created will be created/have been created by the applicant.  
 
Amy Medford referred to the shade trees. She stated that the lots need to be rated to 
determine solar readiness.  Ms. Medford stated that the applicant should continue as 
approved and keep the current condition on the trees. A homeowner will have the option 
in the future to cut back the trees if applicable if growth should  interfere with the installed 
solar panels.  Ms. Medford also stated that there should not be any additional variance 
requests for the lots.  
 
With no additional speakers or questions the public hearing was closed by Chairman 
McFarland.  
 
Chairman McFarland asked for a motion. Lisa Williams made the motion to deny the 
variance requests.   Susan Hood seconded, and the motion passed 5/0/0. 

 
 

E. OTHER BUSINESS 
1. DISCUSSION: Zoning Code Update 

Lauren Blaszyk of POND and Company gave a status overview of the Zoning Rewrite 
and next steps. Open houses are scheduled for July 13th 9AM to 1PM-  and July 14th 
5PM to 8PM at the Clarkston Women’s Club. The technical advisory committee will 
meet in person following social distancing protocol at the Clarkston Community 
Center August 10th . 
Charles McFarland asked about public engagement and how the public is being 
informed about the zoning rewrite project.  
M.s Blaszyk stated that the team has posted on all City social media outlets, posted 
25-yard signs and attended events in the City to distribute information flyers.  
Dean Moore asked for the zoning rewrite website address. It was given by Lauren 
Blaszyk as www. planningatpond.com/Clarkston-zoning-ordinance-rewrite.   
 
Amy Medford made reference to translation services for non-English speaking 
residents. PED Director Qawiy made reference that a minor tweaking of the site should 
include requests for translations services if requested.  Director Qawiy also made 
reference to the June 22nd Mayor and Council work session that will include a power 
point presentation from the consultant team.  



 
 

F. ADJOURNMENT : Chairman McFarland called for a motion to adjourn. Lisa Williams made 
the motion to adjourn, Felicia Weinert seconded the motion, and the motion passed 5/0/0. 
Meeting adjourned at 8:37PM. 













































CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

PURPOSE:   

To approve the Women’s Equality Day Proclamation 

NEED/IMPACT 

Women’s Equality Day Proclamation 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
Staff has no recommendations 

ITEM NO: G1 

ACTION TYPE: 
PROCLAMATION 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES HEARING 
TYPE: 
Council Meeting MEETING DATE: August 4, 2021

SUBJECT:  Women’s Equality Day Proclamation 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:    No   YES 
Pages:  1

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:  Beverly H. Burks, 
Debra Johnson, Jamie Carroll 

PHONE NUMBER: 678.409.9683 



 
 

 
 

A PROCLAMATION BY THE CLARKSTON MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL RECOGNIZING 
AUGUST 26th AS WOMEN’S EQUALITY DAY 

 
WHEREAS, women in the United States have continuously worked to gain full rights and privileges – public or 
private, legal or institutional – as citizens of the United States; and 
 
WHEREAS, women in every state worked to secure women’s right to vote; and 
 
WHEREAS, Congress has designated August 26, the date the Nineteenth Amendment was certified, as 
Women’s Equality Day; and 
 
WHEREAS, recognizing Women’s Equality Day as a day of celebration throughout the country emphasizes the 
importance of women’s work for democracy; and 
 
WHEREAS, The National Women’s History Alliance (NWHA) Women’s History 2021 theme of Valiant 
Women of the Vote: Refusing to be Silenced continues to celebrate the Suffrage Centennial. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the Mayor and City Council of the City of Clarkston, Georgia, 
that this governing body do hereby commemorates Women’s Equality Day, August 26th, as a day to celebrate 
the importance of the women’s suffrage movement. The City calls upon the residents of Clarkston to participate 
in ceremonies and activities that work to secure and expand equal rights today such as, supporting women 
businesses, creating mentoring programs for business owners and women employees, and bringing equality 
awareness at the workplace. 
 
SO ORDAINED, this _______ day of _______________________, 2021. 

 
 
ATTEST:                                                                                                    CITY COUNCIL 
                                                                                                                    CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA 
                                                                                                                                                       
By _____________________                                                                                             ______________________________ 
Tracy Ashby, City Clerk                                                                              Beverly H. Burks, Mayor 

 

 



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

PURPOSE:   

To approve National Senior Citizens Day Proclamation 

NEED/IMPACT 

National Senior Citizens Day Proclamation 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
Staff has no recommendations 

ITEM NO: G2 

ACTION TYPE: 
PROCLAMATION 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 
HEARING TYPE: 
Council Meeting MEETING DATE: August 4, 2021

SUBJECT:  National Senior Citizens Day Proclamation 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:    No   Yes 
Pages:  1

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:  Beverly H. Burks, 
Debra Johnson, Jamie Carroll 

PHONE NUMBER: 678.409.9683 



 
 

 
 

A PROCLAMATION BY THE CLARKSTON MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL RECOGNIZING 
AUGUST 21st AS SENIOR CITIZENS DAY 

 
WHEREAS, the observance of Senior Citizens Day in the month of August recognizes seniors who have spent 
their lives contributing to society and have impacted everyone’s lives for the better. The day is dedicated to 
enhancing the quality of life for millions of senior citizens in communities around the world; and 
 
WHEREAS, Senior Citizens Day was originally recognized on August 14, 1935, the day President Franklin 
Roosevelt signed the Social Security Act. In 1988, then President Ronald Reagan officially changed the 
observant day to August 21 to recognize those seniors who made positive contributions in their communities, as 
well as to bring awareness of social, health, and economic issues affecting that population; and 
 
WHEREAS, citizens are generally classified “senior” once they reach the age of 65. According to the United 
States Census Bureau, approximately 78 million people aged 65 and older will reside in America by 2035. This 
figure will surpass the number of the population under the age of 18 for the first time in the nation’s history; and 
 
WHEREAS, the observation of Senior Citizens Day recognizes the achievements and vital contributions of 
senior citizens and their involvement in their local communities.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the Mayor and City Council of the City of Clarkston, Georgia, 
that this governing body do hereby recognize and observe Senior Citizens Day on August 21, 2021. We 
recognize the impact of the senior citizens in our own community and encourage you to spend time with the 
seniors you know, listen to their stories, and grow from their wisdom. 
 
 
SO ORDAINED, this _______ day of _______________________, 2021. 

 
 
ATTEST:                                                                                                    CITY COUNCIL 
                                                                                                                    CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA 
                                                                                                                                                       
By _____________________                                                                                             ______________________________ 
Tracy Ashby, City Clerk                                                                              Beverly H. Burks, Mayor 

 

 



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

PURPOSE:   

To  approve 50th Anniversary of the 26th Amendment Proclamation 

NEED/IMPACT 

50th Anniversary of the 26th Amendment Proclamation 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
Staff has no recommendations 

ITEM NO: G3 

ACTION TYPE: 
PROCLAMATION 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 
HEARING TYPE: 
Council Meeting MEETING DATE: August 4, 2021

SUBJECT:  50th Anniversary of the 26th Amendment Proclamation 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:    YES   NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:  Beverly H. Burks, 
Debra Johnson, Jamie Carroll 

PHONE NUMBER: 678.409.9683 



 
 

 
 
  
A PROCLAMATION BY THE CLARKSTON MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL COMMERATING THE 

50TH ANNIVERSARY OF THE 26TH AMENDMENT 
 

 
WHEREAS: Fifty years ago, the 26th Amendment to the United States Constitution took effect, lowering the 
universal voting age in America from 21 years to 18 years. Millions of young Americans were extended the 
right to vote, empowering more young people than ever before to help shape our country; and 
 
WHEREAS: The right to vote has been secured by generations of leaders over our history, from the women's 
groups of the early 20th century to the civil rights activists of the 1960s. For young people, the movement to 
lower America's voting age took years of hard work and tough advocacy to make the dream a reality. Yet, once 
proposed in Congress in 1971, the 26th Amendment was ratified in the shortest time span of any Constitutional 
Amendment in American history; and 
 
WHEREAS: On July 5, 1971, President Richard Nixon signed the amendment into law, allowing millions of 
new young people to vote in the 1972 election; and 
 
WHEREAS: We mark the 50th anniversary of the passage of the 26th Amendment, and reflect on its impact to 
engage young adults in becoming active participants in American democracy; and 
 
WHEREAS: Today, young adults across America continue to exercise this enormous responsibility of 
citizenship. Countless young people are involved in the political process, dedicated to ensuring their voices are 
heard; and 
 
WHEREAS: Today, and for the last fifty years, systemic and legislative barriers continue to make full 
democratic participation unduly difficult for young voters; and 
 
WHEREAS: Today we must renew the effort to invest in strengthening history and civic learning and to ensure 
that civic learning opportunities are delivered equitably throughout the country; and 
 
WHEREAS: Ideas from young Americans are important to us as elected officials, and they will help shape the 
future of our Nation. We are committed to supporting and developing young leaders from all beliefs and 
backgrounds, and from urban and rural communities alike; and 
 
WHEREAS: Young adults have been a driving force for change in the last century, bringing new ideas and high 
hopes to our national dialogue. Today, we remember the efforts of those who fought for their seat at the table, 
and we encourage coming generations to claim their place in our democracy. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the Mayor and City Council of the City of Clarkston, Georgia, 
that this governing body do hereby commemorate, the 50th anniversary of the 26th Amendment in the City of 
Clarkston in Georgia. The City calls upon the residents of Clarkston to participate in ceremonies and activities 
that honor young Americans, and those who have fought for freedom and justice in our country. 
 
 
SO ORDAINED, this _______ day of _______________________, 2021. 

 
 
ATTEST:                                                                                                    CITY COUNCIL 
                                                                                                                    CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA 
                                                                                                                                                       
By _____________________                                                                                             ______________________________ 
Tracy Ashby, City Clerk                                                                              Beverly H. Burks, Mayor 

 

 



Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

PURPOSE:   The Alcohol Review Committee (ARC) has received and reviewed an ownership change 
application for alcohol beverage package store for Beer/Wine/Malt Beverages.  The location to be 
considered for this alcohol beverage license is Thriftown  located at 926  Montreal Road, Suite 3A.. 

NEED/ IMPACT:  The new owner RR Property Group LLC D/B/A/ Thriftown at 926  Montreal Road, 
Suite 3A has made application for an alcohol beverage, license for Beer/Wine/Malt beverages for 
retail package sales. To date: all of the required inspections have been performed and the required 
background check has been passed. Code Compliance Officer Shennetha Smith has reviewed the 
application and has measured the location and found it does meet minimum distances as defined by 
the Code. 

The ARC has performed a thorough review of the various components to this application. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff (ARC) recommends approval.   

Under Clarkston Code Sec. 3-53, the City Council is vested with the final authority to grant an alcohol 
license. 

ITEM NO: G4 

ACTION TYPE: 
Resolution 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES HEARING 
TYPE: 
Council Meeting      MEETING DATE: August 4, 2021

SUBJECT: To approve a new alcohol beverage license application. 

DEPARTMENT: Alcohol Review Committee 

ATTACHMENT:   YES  NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING:  YES  NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:   City Manager 

PHONE NUMBER: 404-296-6489   





















Page 1 

CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: AUGUST 4, 2021 

SUBJECT: Approve Electric Vehicle (EV) charging station license agreement with Georgia 
Power to install electric vehicle charging stations in the City of Clarkston. 

PURPOSE:  To approve the City entering into a Charging Station License Agreement with 
Georgia Power Company that will allow for GA Power to install an electrical vehicle (EV) charging 
station for the public usage at no cost (to the public).   

NEED/ IMPACT:  
Georgia Power and City staff reviewed and discussed the installation of various EV charging 
stations on City property.  The recommended location to install two (2) charging stations is the 2 
eastern most parking spaces adjacent to the City Hall/Police Station Market St driveway entrance. 
The location is optimal due to its proximity to our City Center, the PATH, and the Clarkston Police 
Station (safety) which is well lit and under 24-hour camera surveillance.   

Georgia Power will have access to the premises for construction, installation, maintenance, 
repair, operation and use for the charging station with customers having access to the area 24 
hours, 7 days a week. GPC shall have the exclusive right to provide vehicle charging and support 
services to drivers of electric plug-in vehicles and EV-charging-related services at the premises at 
no cost to the public.  The City will provide the space to GA Power also at no cost (no revenue to 
the City). 

The electric plug-in vehicles license agreement is an irrevocable 10-year commitment. 

RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 

ITEM NO: G5 

ACTION TYPE: 
Resolution

HEARING TYPE: 
 Council Meeting 

DEPARTMENT: 
 Planning & Economic Development 

ATTACHMENTS: YES   NO 
Pages:  

PUBLIC HEARING:  YES NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:   
Shawanna Qawiy, MSCM, MPA 
Planning & Economic Development Director 
PHONE: 404-296-6489   



 Page 2  

 
 
 

GEORGIA POWER COMPANY 
CHARGING STATION LICENSE AGREEMENT              

(Company name) a (State Inc, Corp, LLC) (“Licensor”), and GEORGIA POWER COMPANY, a Georgia corporation (“GPC”), 
hereby enter into this Charging Station License Agreement (the “License”) as of (Month, Day) 2020 (the “Effective Date”). In 
consideration of mutual benefits and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, 
Licensor and GPC (collectively, the “Parties”) acknowledge and agree as follows: 

LICENSE GRANT; COVENANTS 
Premises; License Area. Licensor is the fee owner of the property located at __________________________________________ 
and further described or depicted in Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Premises”), and Licensor grants to GPC a license to use that 
portion of the Premises identified in Exhibit A (the “License Area”) for the Charging Station (defined in Section 3.1). At GPC's 
election, GPC may record this License or a memorandum of this License in the real property records. Licensor acknowledges that 
GPC will make substantial expenditures to install the Charging Station in reliance upon the terms of this License. 
Use of Other Portions of the Premises. During the Term (as defined in Section 2.1), Licensor also grants to GPC: (i) a general 
ability to use the Premises for access to and from the License Area for construction, installation, maintenance, repair, operation and 
use of the Charging Station; (ii) the right, but not the obligation, to provide GPC’s customers access to the License Area 24 hours per 
day, 7 days per week, and 365/366 days per year; and (iii) the rights described in the form distribution easement attached hereto as 
Exhibit B in order to permit GPC to install, operate, maintain and repair overhead and/or underground electric distribution lines and 
related facilities (including electric distribution cabinets) in the locations needed to serve the Charging Station. 
Restrictive Covenants. During the Term, Licensor agrees that the Premises are subject to the following restrictive covenants: 
(i) GPC and its customers will have vehicular and pedestrian access to and from the License Area at all times and Licensor will not 
make or allow any material change to the vehicular or pedestrian access without providing 30 days' prior written notice to GPC; 
(ii) Licensor will not make or allow any change to the License Area without GPC's prior written consent; and (iii) GPC shall have the 
exclusive right to provide vehicle charging and support services to drivers of electric plug-in vehicles (each an “EV”) and EV-charging-
related services at the Premises. Licensor will incorporate item (iii) into all leases, licenses and other grants of rights affecting the 
Premises. 

TERM; FEE; TERMINATION 
License Term. The term of this License (the “Term”) will commence on the date the Charging Station is first operational (the 
“Commencement Date”), and unless extended per this Section 2.1 or terminated per Section 2.3, will end on the date which is ten 
(10) years after the Commencement Date. Upon request by Licensor, GPC will provide written notice of the Commencement Date 
to Licensor. The Term will automatically renew for successive five (5) year periods unless either Party gives written notice to the other 
Party of its desire to terminate the License at least ninety (90) days before the end of the then-current Term. 
License Fee. GPC will pay Licensor One Dollar ($1.00) per year for the use of the License Area, due and payable upon the execution 
of this License. If the Term is extended per Section 2.1, GPC will pay Licensor One Dollar ($1.00) for each year of the extended Term 
on or before the end of the then-current Term. 
Termination.  Licensor may immediately terminate this License for cause if GPC fails to perform any License obligation in any 
material respect, and the breach continues uncured for 30 days after receipt of written notice. GPC may immediately terminate this 
License upon written notice, for any reason or for no reason. Promptly following expiration or termination, GPC will remove the 
Charging Station from the License Area and will restore the area to its former condition, excluding ordinary wear and tear. Despite 
the previous sentence, GPC, at its option, may cap off and secure, but not remove, any underground electrical wiring or conduit. 
Upon any termination of this License, both Parties are relieved of any further obligation under this License, except for any obligation 
that by its nature should survive or may require performance after termination. 

CHARGING STATION FACILITIES 
Charging Station Facilities. Each “Charging Station” includes all EV charging equipment; GPC signage; electrical equipment, 
meters, hardware, and software; and supporting equipment and structures installed by GPC, including electric distribution cabinets 
and equipment, concrete pads, and protective bollards. The number and approximate location of each Charging Station is indicated 
in Exhibit A.  GPC (itself or through contractors), at any time and for any reason during the Term, may upgrade, revise, alter, swap, 
or remove all or part of any Charging Station in the License Area and may perform security assessments and install (or add additional) 
reasonable security features, including lighting or cameras. 
Signage. GPC may paint, place, erect, or project signs, marks, or advertising devices on or about the License Area or elsewhere on 
the Premises, including signage on or around the Charging Station designating the area “EV Charge Parking Only.” 
Installation. GPC will retain all ownership rights in the Charging Station throughout the Term. GPC will have the right to remove all 
or a portion of the Charging Station at any time during the Term or after License termination, whether or not the items are considered 
fixtures or attachments to the License Area under applicable law. 



 Page 3  

Operation and Maintenance. GPC, at its sole cost and discretion, will maintain and operate the Charging Station. GPC, in its sole 
discretion, will determine the type and amount of user fees and method of payment to GPC. Licensor may not collect any fee for use 
of the Charging Station. If there are operational or maintenance issues with the Charging Station, Licensor will not undertake any 
repair; instead, Licensor will promptly contact GPC per Exhibit C attached hereto. GPC does not guarantee uninterrupted or continual 
operation of the Charging Station and, in its sole discretion, may interrupt operation when necessary. 
Licensor Obligations. Licensor, at its sole cost and expense, will take all action necessary to maintain the License Area in a clean, 
safe, and orderly condition, to at least the same standard as it customarily maintains the Premises common areas, including providing 
lighting and general security for the License Area. Licensor agrees to take reasonable measures (including towing) to discourage 
non-EV vehicles from parking in the License Area. 
Property Taxes. GPC is solely responsible for personal property taxes imposed on the Charging Station. All other real or personal 
property taxes related to the License Area and the Premises are the sole obligation of Licensor.  

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY; PUBLICITY 
GPC Intellectual Property. As between the Parties, GPC retains ownership of all of GPC’s “Intellectual Property” (each copyright, 
patent, trademark, service mark, name, logo, design, domain name, trade secret, know-how, and each unique concept, data, or 
knowledge eligible for legal protection as intellectual property under applicable law). Licensor has, and will obtain, no right in any 
GPC Intellectual Property. Each reference to GPC in this Section 4 includes its parent, Southern Company, and its affiliates. Any 
document in any format prepared by or under the direction of GPC in connection with construction, installation, or maintenance of a 
Charging Station is solely and exclusively GPC Intellectual Property. 
Publicity. Licensor may not use GPC’s name or any GPC Intellectual Property without GPC’s prior written consent. No publication 
or promotional material may claim or imply that GPC endorses Licensor’s business, brand, products, environmental attributes, or 
Licensor generally. Licensor agrees that it will not place a logo, trademark, service mark, or advertising device on any portion of the 
Charging Station or in the License Area without GPC’s prior written consent. GPC may advise mapping services, vehicle navigation 
system manufacturers, or smart phone application developers of the existence of the Charging Station at the License Area. To 
promote and inform the public about the Charging Station, GPC may disclose to the public information about the location of the 
Charging Station and its status and may use the business name (or project or shopping center name as designated by Licensor) and 
address of the License Area in promotional materials, websites, and maps. With Licensor’s prior written consent, GPC may use 
Licensor’s logo, trademark, or service mark in promotional materials, websites, or maps. 

LICENSOR REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS 
Licensor represents, warrants, or covenants that: (i) it has or will obtain any consent or approval required for Licensor to enter into, 
grant the rights in, and perform its obligations under, this License, and for GPC to take the contemplated actions with respect to the 
License Area, from any third party: (a) with an interest in the Premises; or (b) whose consent is required under conditions, covenants, 
or restrictions documents or declarations affecting the Premises; (ii) there is no lien, judgment, encumbrance, or other impediment of 
title on the Premises that would adversely affect use of the License Area by GPC per this License; and (iii) it will maintain the Premises 
free of any lien, judgment, encumbrance, or impediment throughout the Term. 

INSURANCE 
GPC Insurance. During the Term, GPC will maintain, at its cost and expense, the insurance coverage it is required to maintain by 
the Georgia Public Service Commission. In all events, GPC will be entitled to self-insure. 
Licensor Insurance. Licensor, at its expense, must procure and maintain in effect without interruption throughout the Term insurance 
policies providing at least the following coverages and limits: 

Commercial general liability (“CGL”) (or a combination of CGL and excess/umbrella liability) insurance on an occurrence (not 
claims made) basis, providing coverage of at least $5 million for any one occurrence in or about the Premises (including the 
License Area), and $5 million in the annual aggregate, including broad form contractual liability coverage, products/completed 
operations coverage for 2 years, broad form bodily injury and property damage coverage, and severability of interest for each 
insured; and 
Full replacement cost property insurance (written on a “special perils” basis) for: (a) the Premises and all improvements thereon; 
and (b) all personal property, machinery, equipment, and trade fixtures located at the Premises; and 
Statutory worker's compensation insurance and employer's liability insurance of $1 million per accident/per employee. 

Upon request during the Term, Licensor will provide to GPC a certificate evidencing the required coverages. To the extent allowed by 
applicable law: (i) Licensor’s CGL, and if applicable, excess/umbrella liability, insurance must name GPC as an additional insured for 
any claim arising out of any activity at the Premises or caused by action or inaction of Licensor, its agents, representatives, or invitees, 
but additional insured status will not apply to a claim resulting from GPC’s sole negligence; and (ii) Licensor waives, and will require 
its insurers to waive, any right of subrogation otherwise possessed against GPC under any insurance maintained by Licensor 
(including CGL, excess/umbrella, and property) or under state or federal workers’ compensation or employer’s liability law, except 
that the waiver will not extend to a claim resulting from sole negligence of GPC unless allowed by applicable law. The existence, or 
amount, of insurance does not waive or limit Licensor’s liability under this License. 
Licensor Waiver. Despite anything to the contrary in this License, to the extent covered by property insurance maintained (or required 
to be maintained) under Section 6.2 (Licensor Insurance), Licensor waives every right or cause of action for any loss of or damage 
to the Premises or any improvement thereon, or to the personal property of Licensor, or its affiliates, representatives, agents, officers, 
directors, shareholders, partners, owners, contractors, employees, or invitees, regardless of cause or origin and whether or not 



 Page 4  

caused by the fault or negligence(except sole negligence) of GPC, its agents, or employees. This waiver and release applies between 
the Parties and to any claim by, under, or through Licensor as a result of any asserted right of subrogation.  

BROKERS; ATTORNEYS’ FEES; REMEDIES 
Brokers. Each Party represents to the other that it has not dealt with any broker in connection with this License. Each Party will 
indemnify and hold harmless the other against and from any loss, cost, damage or fee (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting 
from any inaccuracy of this representation and warranty. 
Attorneys’ Fees. If either Party sues the other for violation of, or to enforce any provision of, this License, the prevailing Party will be 
entitled to reimbursement of all its costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees. 
Remedies. Licensor specifically agrees that if the covenants in Section 1 are breached, damages will be very difficult, if not 
impossible, to ascertain. Accordingly, in addition to any other remedy allowed by law, the Parties agree that each covenant will be 
enforceable in equity. The rights and remedies provided by this License are cumulative and are additional to any right under applicable 
law or in equity; the use of any right or remedy by a Party does not preclude or waive its right to use any other remedy.  

MISCELLANEOUS 
Relationship of the Parties; Force Majeure. The Parties are independent contractors in performance of this License. This License: 
(i) creates no joint venture, partnership, fiduciary, or agency relationship for any purpose; (ii) confer s no right or remedy on any person 
other than the Parties and their respective successors or permitted assigns; and (iii) creates no contractual relationship with, or cause 
of action for, any third party. Any renewable energy credit, allowance, or other indicator of environmental benefit attributable to 
presence of a Charging Station on the Premises during the Term belongs to GPC. Rights and obligations in this License are 
independent from any other agreement between the Parties. Neither Party is responsible for delay or failure in License performance 
to the extent the delay or failure is caused by fire, flood, explosion, war, embargo, government requirement, civil or military authority, 
act of God, act or omission of carriers, or other similar cause beyond the Party’s control. 
Interpretation. Both Parties were involved in negotiating this License; no rule allowing construction according to authorship applies. 
Georgia law governs all matters, including torts, relating to this License, without regard to choice of law principles. The Parties will 
resolve a claim or dispute under this License in a state or federal court sitting in Fulton County, Georgia, regardless of Premises 
location; each consents to exclusive jurisdiction and venue in these courts. This License and its exhibits comprise the Parties’ final 
and exclusive expression of their rights and obligations regarding the License Area and supersede any prior oral or written 
representation, promise, or agreement. Captions are for convenience only and do not affect interpretation; “include” means “include, 
but are not limited to”; “or” means “either or both”; and defined terms are singular or plural as context requires. License provisions 
that logically should apply beyond License expiration or termination will survive expiration or termination. 
Modification; Waiver; Assignment; Severability. No amendment or modification of this License is effective unless made in a writing 
signed by both Parties. Each Party agrees to execute documents or perform acts reasonably necessary to perform each provision 
of this License. Failure of a Party to insist on strict performance of any provision does not waive the right to require future performance; 
a waiver in one instance is not a waiver regarding a later obligation or breach. This License binds and benefits the Parties and their 
respective heirs, successors, assigns, including successor Premises owners. If there is an assignment or change in control of all, or 
substantially all, of a Party’s operations or assets, the Party must provide prompt written notice and the Parties will cooperate to 
ensure that the License binds the successor. If a court rules a provision unenforceable to any extent, the rest of that provision and all 
others remain effective; the Parties will negotiate in good faith to replace the provision. If a court finds a provision unreasonably broad 
in time or scope, the Parties desire that the court reduce it to the maximum allowable parameter, instead of holding it totally 
unenforceable.  
Notices. Any notice under this License must be in writing and be delivered either by: (i) personal delivery (effective that date); 
(ii) prepaid nationally- or internationally-recognized commercial overnight courier (effective the next business day); or (iii) registered 
or certified U.S. mail, with proper postage (effective the following fourth business day). The Parties will provide notice as indicated in 
Exhibit C, subject to any update provided by written notice pursuant to this Section 8.4. 

 

[Remainder of page left blank; signatures appear on following page] 
  



 Page 5  

Each Party agrees to all terms and conditions of this License as of the Effective Date. This License may be executed in any 
number of counterparts. The Parties may exchange counterparts by facsimile transmission or as a scanned image (e.g., .pdf 
or .tiff file extension) as an attachment to email; a facsimile or scanned signature is an original signature for all purposes. 
 

 
 
 
 
Signed, sealed, and delivered 
in the presence of: 
 
 
 
       
Unofficial Witness 
 
 
 

 
LICENSOR: 
 
     , a 
____________________________ 
 
 
 
By:       

Name: ___________ __                     _____________ 

Title:                                                 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
GPC: 
 

Signed, sealed, and delivered 
in the presence of: 
 
 
       
Unofficial Witness 
 
 
 

GEORGIA POWER COMPANY, a Georgia corporation 
 
 
 
By:       

Name: ___________Jennifer Winn _______________ 

Title:   Natural Resources GM               

 
 



  

EXHIBIT A 
DEPICTION OF PREMISES AND LICENSE AREA 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 
 



  

EXHIBIT B 
FORM DISTRIBUTION EASEMENT 

 
(attached) 



 
 

  
 

EXHIBIT C 
NOTICES AND ADMINISTRATION 

 
Licensor will provide notice to GPC regarding any operational or maintenance issue at the Charging Station under 
Section 3.4 (Operation and Maintenance) as follows: 
 

Kelli Newman 
Electric Transportation Market Specialist 
Georgia Power Company 
knewman@southernco.com 
111 Stockyard Rd. 
Statesboro, GA 30458 

 
 

 

 
Each Party will provide Publicity requests to the other under Publicity (Section 4.2) as follows: 
 

Requests to GPC: 
 

Ed Harmon 
Electric Transportation Program Manager 
Georgia Power Company 
echarmon@southernco.com 
4404 N. Shallowford Road 
Atlanta, GA  30338 

Requests to Licensor: 
 

Robin I. Gomez 
City Manager 
City of Clarkston 
1055 Rowland St 
Clarkston GA 30321 

 
 
 
Each Party will provide written notice to the other under Notices (Section 8.4) as follows: 
 

Notice to GPC: 
 

Ed Harmon 
Electric Transportation Program Manager 
Georgia Power Company 
4404 N. Shallowford Road 

          Atlanta, GA  30338 

Notice to Licensor: 
 

Robin I. Gomez 
City Manager 
City of Clarkston 
1055 Rowland St 
Clarkston GA  30021 

 
With a copy to: With a copy to: 
 

Vanessa Watson 
Senior Counsel 
Georgia Power Company 
241 Ralph McGill Blvd NE 
Bin 10180 
Atlanta, GA  30308 

 

 
Stephen Quinn 
City Attorney 
City of Clarkston 
 
 

 
  

 



CITY OF CLARKSTON 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS AGENDA / MINUTES 

MEETING DATE: August 4, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Approve  a Resolution to encourage the DOT to add sound barriers between 285 and the city when they add 
an extra lane 

PURPOSE:   

To approve a resolution to encourage the DOT to add sound barriers between 285 and the city when they 
add an extra lane. 

NEED/IMPACT 

Adopt a resolution to encourage the DOT to add sound barriers between 285 and the city when they add an extra 
lane 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
Staff has no recommendations 

ITEM NO: G7 

ACTION TYPE: 
PROCLAMATION HEARING TYPE: 

Council Meeting 

DEPARTMENT: City Administration 

ATTACHMENT:    No   Yes 
Pages:  1

PUBLIC HEARING: YES   NO 

INFORMATION CONTACT:  Jamie Carroll & 
MARK W. Perkins 

PHONE NUMBER: 678.409.9683 



A RESOLUTION BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL ENCOURAGE THE GEORGIA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION TO ADD SOUND BARRIERS BETWEEN 285 

AND THE CITY WHEN THEY ADD AN EXTRA LANE   
 

 
WHEREAS, The Mayor and Council desire to reduce the negative impacts of Interstate Noise on 
the Clarkston Community; and 
 
WHEREAS, every year the number of automobiles traveling the I-285 corridor increases; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Noise Control Act of 1972 determined that inadequately controlled noise 
presents a growing danger to the health and welfare of the Nation's population, particularly in 
urban areas; and  
 
WHEREAS, since the 1970s, sound walls or barriers have been constructed in the United States 
to help buffer the adjacent homes and businesses from the increased noise pollution; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council hereby requests that the Georgia 
Department of Transportation include the installation of sound barriers on any future I-285 lane 
expansion projects that are constructed adjacent to the City of Clarkston.   
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of City of Clarkston, 
Georgia, this ___________day of _________________, 2021. 

 

ATTEST:      
                                                                                               CITY COUNCIL                                                                                                                                                     
                                                                                               CITY OF CLARKSTON, GEORGIA 

By _____________________                                                ______________________________ 

Tracy Ashby, City Clerk                                                         Beverly H. Burks, Mayor 

 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

 


	C. PRESENTATION/ ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS NEW BUSINESS
	D. OLD BUSINESS
	E. NEW BUSINESS
	EXTRACT Ted Braswell Variance Request  Council Meeting 6  22  2021.pdf
	F. PRESENTATION/ ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS NEW BUSINESS F1) Presentation - Zoning Rewrite
	F2) Presentation- City Website Redesign
	F3) Presentation – Market St Sidewalk
	G. OLD BUSINESS
	H. NEW BUSINESS
	PRESENTATION - Public Hearing to Adopt the 2021 Millage Rate  JUNE 22  2021  MEETINGS.pdf
	Public Hearing to Adopt the� 2021 Millage Rate
	��Public Hearing to Adopt 2021 Millage Rate��AGENDA��
	Process
	First… �a few definitions
	Appraised Value
	Assessed Value
	Tax Digest
	What is a “mil”?
	Rollback Rate
	Now for the numbers…
	10 Year Gross Digest History
	City of Clarkston Net Digest Changes 
	City of Clarkston Digest
	Calculating the Millage Rate
	Calculating the Millage Rate
	Millage Rate History
	Proposed Millage Rates �of DeKalb Cities
	Increase In Net Digest�DeKalb Cities
	So……
	How are my taxes computed?
	How are my taxes computed?
	How are my taxes computed?
	How are my taxes computed?
	�Public Hearing��Questions - comments�

	ROLLBACK Corrected 2021 PT 32.1 City of Clarkston Rollback (005).pdf
	Final Version

	Finance Dept Property Tax Revenue Calculation for 2021 Tax Digest 05.25.2021 (003).pdf
	2021 Revenue No Mill change
	2021 Revenues at Rollback rate

	Presentation SUMMARY - WEBSITE REDESIGN RFP - PRESENTATIONS BY 3 FINALISTS.pdf
	SUBJECT:  City Website Redesign RFP – Presentations by 3 Finalists

	Pres website CivicPlus Power Point 2021.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Who is CivicPlus
	How does CivicPlus handle on-line billing?
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	What about Designs?��answer: Customizable websites where we will capture your vision
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	    CivicPlus Customer Support
	Slide Number 14
	Georgia Clients
	Slide Number 16

	Municode  web presentation.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9

	PRES SUMMARY - PRESENTATION - MARKET ST SIDEWALK.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Market St Sidewalk Location Options

	PRES C3 2021-06-15 Market Street (1) - On Road Sidewalk.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Market Street-C1
	Market Street-C2
	Market Street-C3
	Market Street-Layout1


	PRES C3 2021-06-15 Market Street-ALT (1) - Off Road Sidewalk.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Market Street-alt-C1
	Market Street-alt-C2
	Market Street-alt-C3
	Market Street-alt-Layout1


	SUMMARY - SPLOST 04 B+C EASEMENTS.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Approve SPLOST Project 04-B+C TRAILHEAD/MELL AVE/ROWLAND ST Temporary Easement Agreements

	SUMMARY - REPEAL ORDINANCE ALLOWING RESTAURANT LATE NIGHT OPERATIONS.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discuss Repealing Late Night Restaurant Operations related to City Ordinance 19-433, Late Night Alcohol Sales for Consumption on Premises
	SUBJECT:  Discuss Repealing Late Night Restaurant Operations related to City Ordinance 19-433, Late Night Alcohol Sales for Consumption on Premises

	Resolution Authorizing TAN City of Clarkston 2021 (00124343xA91E4).pdf
	Section 1. Findings.  The Governing Body hereby finds and determines as follows:  (a) the principal amount of the Note and any other outstanding temporary loans do not exceed 75% of the total gross income from taxes collected by the Issuer in calendar...
	Section 2. Authorization of Note; Terms and Execution.  There is hereby authorized to be issued a tax anticipation note of the Issuer in the principal amount of $500,000 which shall be designated “City of Clarkston, Georgia Tax Anticipation Note, 2021...
	Section 3. Approval of Form of Note.  The Note as initially issued shall be issued in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A subject to such minor changes, insertions or omissions as may be approved by the Mayor, and the execution and del...
	Section 4. Tax Revenues Used to Repay Note.  The Issuer agrees to use for payment of the Note and the interest thereon a sufficient portion of the revenues received by the Issuer from taxes levied or to be levied for calendar year 2021 for the General...
	Section 5. Authentication of Note.  The Note as originally issued and each Note issued in connection with a registration of transfer shall have endorsed thereon a certificate of authentication substantially in the form set forth in the Note.  The Note...
	Section 6. Registered Owner.  The person in whose name the Note shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and payment of or on account of either principal or interest shall be made only to or upon...
	Section 7. Tax Covenants and Representations.  The Note is being issued by the Issuer for the governmental purpose of providing funds for the current expenses of the Issuer for the year 2021, in compliance with the conditions necessary for the interes...
	(a) It will not take any action, or fail to take any action, if any such action or failure to take action would adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Note under Section 103 of the Code.
	(b) It will not directly or indirectly use or permit the use of any proceeds of the Note or any other funds of the Issuer or take or omit to take any action in a way that would cause the Note to be (i) a “private activity bond” within the meaning of S...
	(c) It will not directly or indirectly use or permit the use of any proceeds of the Note or any other funds of the Issuer or take or omit to take any action that would cause the Note to be an “arbitrage bond” within the meaning of Section 148 of the C...
	(d) It will cause to be completed and filed with the Internal Revenue Service the information required by Section 149(e) of the Code (Treasury Form 8038-G) simultaneously with the issuance of the Note.

	Section 8. General Authority.  From and after the date of adoption of this Resolution, any member of the Governing Body and the officers of the Issuer are hereby authorized to do such acts and things, and to execute and deliver all such certificates o...
	Section 9. Sale of Note.  The sale of the Note to Truist Bank, a North Carolina banking corporation, at a purchase price of par,  is hereby approved.
	Section 10. Tax Levy for Payment of Note.  For the purpose of providing funds for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Note, there shall be and hereby is assessed and levied and there shall hereafter be collected a direct tax upon all r...
	Section 11. Bank Qualification.  The Issuer hereby designates the Note as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.
	Section 13. Financial Covenants.  The City shall furnish the registered owner of the Note the annual audited financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020 as soon as they are available, but no later than 270 days after t...
	Section 14. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption, and any and all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this Resolution shall be, and they are, to the extent of such conflict, ...
	Adopted by the Governing Body of the Issuer on 29th day of June, 2021.

	SUMMARY - REPEAL ORDINANCE WEAR A MASK - COVID -19.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discuss Repealing City Ordinance No 464, Requiring the Use of Masks or Face Coverings in Public During the COVID-19 Pandemic

	Agenda  630P Special Call Work Session  June 22  2021.pdf
	F. PRESENTATION/ ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS NEW BUSINESS F1) Presentation - Zoning Rewrite
	F2) Presentation- City Website Redesign
	F3) Presentation – Market St Sidewalk
	G. OLD BUSINESS
	H. NEW BUSINESS

	Draft Minutes  Council Meeting  June 1 2021.pdf
	G. NEW BUSINESS
	H. EXECUTIVES SESSION
	Motion: Debra Johnson  made a motion close the executive session and go into open session:
	Second: Laura Hopkins
	Vote: A vote was called and the item passed unanimously (5, 0).
	I. ADJOURNMENT:
	Motion: Laura Hopkins made a motion to adjourn the meeting.
	Second: Debra Johnson
	Vote: A vote was called and the item passed unanimously (5, 0).

	Draft Minutes   630P Special Call Work Session  June 22  2021.pdf
	F. PRESENTATION/ ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS NEW BUSINESS F1) Presentation - Zoning Rewrite  Lauren Blaszyk, Pond Company, gave a presentation on the Zoning Rewrite status.
	F2) Presentation- City Website Redesign
	Presenters of three finalist for website redesign provided presentations.
	CivicPlus John Pugh
	Municode- Chris Rogers
	VC3 – Tim McCuasland
	F3) Presentation – Market St Sidewalk
	Larry Kaiser provided a presentation on Market Street Sidewalks and potential options. City Engineering firm prepared design plans for two alternatives for sidewalk placement on Market Street.
	The two plans are as follows:
	Option #1 - Place sidewalk partially on the road, which reduces the road width from 24 feet to 21 feet, add an 18 inch grass beauty strip and relocate the existing granite curb. Very similar to the Rowland St project (North Indian Creek to Lovejoy). S...
	Option #2 – Place sidewalk behind the existing curb with a 18 inch beauty strip and reset the existing
	granite curb to improve street drainage
	Public Speaker (s): Brian Medford, Dean Moore
	G. OLD BUSINESS
	H. NEW BUSINESS

	Pres website CivicPlus Power Point 2021.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Who is CivicPlus
	How does CivicPlus handle on-line billing?
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	What about Designs?��answer: Customizable websites where we will capture your vision
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	    CivicPlus Customer Support
	Slide Number 14
	Georgia Clients
	Slide Number 16

	Pres web Municode  web presentation.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9

	VC3 Website Partner Plan.pdf
	VC3
	Project Approach
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	VC3 Partnership Plan
	Thank You!��Questions?

	Agenda  Council Meeting  June 29  2021.pdf
	G. NEW BUSINESS
	H. ADJOURNMENT:


	SUMMARY -DISCUSSION ON MARKET ST SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discuss Market St Sidewalk Construction Options

	Summary GEORGIA POWER ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATION_.pdf
	License GRANT; Covenants
	Premises; License Area. Licensor is the fee owner of the property located at __________________________________________ and further described or depicted in Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Premises”), and Licensor grants to GPC a license to use that p...
	Use of Other Portions of the Premises. During the Term (as defined in Section 2.1), Licensor also grants to GPC: (i) a general ability to use the Premises for access to and from the License Area for construction, installation, maintenance, repair, ope...
	Restrictive Covenants. During the Term, Licensor agrees that the Premises are subject to the following restrictive covenants: (i) GPC and its customers will have vehicular and pedestrian access to and from the License Area at all times and Licensor wi...

	TERM; FEE; TERMINATION
	License Term. The term of this License (the “Term”) will commence on the date the Charging Station is first operational (the “Commencement Date”), and unless extended per this Section 2.1 or terminated per Section 2.3, will end on the date which is te...
	License Fee. GPC will pay Licensor One Dollar ($1.00) per year for the use of the License Area, due and payable upon the execution of this License. If the Term is extended per Section 2.1, GPC will pay Licensor One Dollar ($1.00) for each year of the ...
	Termination.  Licensor may immediately terminate this License for cause if GPC fails to perform any License obligation in any material respect, and the breach continues uncured for 30 days after receipt of written notice. GPC may immediately terminate...

	Charging Station Facilities
	Charging Station Facilities. Each “Charging Station” includes all EV charging equipment; GPC signage; electrical equipment, meters, hardware, and software; and supporting equipment and structures installed by GPC, including electric distribution cabin...
	Signage. GPC may paint, place, erect, or project signs, marks, or advertising devices on or about the License Area or elsewhere on the Premises, including signage on or around the Charging Station designating the area “EV Charge Parking Only.”
	Installation. GPC will retain all ownership rights in the Charging Station throughout the Term. GPC will have the right to remove all or a portion of the Charging Station at any time during the Term or after License termination, whether or not the ite...
	Operation and Maintenance. GPC, at its sole cost and discretion, will maintain and operate the Charging Station. GPC, in its sole discretion, will determine the type and amount of user fees and method of payment to GPC. Licensor may not collect any fe...
	Licensor Obligations. Licensor, at its sole cost and expense, will take all action necessary to maintain the License Area in a clean, safe, and orderly condition, to at least the same standard as it customarily maintains the Premises common areas, inc...
	Property Taxes. GPC is solely responsible for personal property taxes imposed on the Charging Station. All other real or personal property taxes related to the License Area and the Premises are the sole obligation of Licensor.

	INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY; PUBLICITY
	GPC Intellectual Property. As between the Parties, GPC retains ownership of all of GPC’s “Intellectual Property” (each copyright, patent, trademark, service mark, name, logo, design, domain name, trade secret, know-how, and each unique concept, data, ...
	Publicity. Licensor may not use GPC’s name or any GPC Intellectual Property without GPC’s prior written consent. No publication or promotional material may claim or imply that GPC endorses Licensor’s business, brand, products, environmental attributes...

	lICENSOR REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES and covenants
	Licensor represents, warrants, or covenants that: (i) it has or will obtain any consent or approval required for Licensor to enter into, grant the rights in, and perform its obligations under, this License, and for GPC to take the contemplated actions...

	INSURANCE
	GPC Insurance. During the Term, GPC will maintain, at its cost and expense, the insurance coverage it is required to maintain by the Georgia Public Service Commission. In all events, GPC will be entitled to self-insure.
	Licensor Insurance. Licensor, at its expense, must procure and maintain in effect without interruption throughout the Term insurance policies providing at least the following coverages and limits:
	Commercial general liability (“CGL”) (or a combination of CGL and excess/umbrella liability) insurance on an occurrence (not claims made) basis, providing coverage of at least $5 million for any one occurrence in or about the Premises (including the L...
	Full replacement cost property insurance (written on a “special perils” basis) for: (a) the Premises and all improvements thereon; and (b) all personal property, machinery, equipment, and trade fixtures located at the Premises; and
	Statutory worker's compensation insurance and employer's liability insurance of $1 million per accident/per employee.

	Upon request during the Term, Licensor will provide to GPC a certificate evidencing the required coverages. To the extent allowed by applicable law: (i) Licensor’s CGL, and if applicable, excess/umbrella liability, insurance must name GPC as an additi...
	Licensor Waiver. Despite anything to the contrary in this License, to the extent covered by property insurance maintained (or required to be maintained) under Section 6.2 (Licensor Insurance), Licensor waives every right or cause of action for any los...

	BROKERS; ATTORNEYS’ FEES; REMEDIES
	Brokers. Each Party represents to the other that it has not dealt with any broker in connection with this License. Each Party will indemnify and hold harmless the other against and from any loss, cost, damage or fee (including reasonable attorneys' fe...
	Attorneys’ Fees. If either Party sues the other for violation of, or to enforce any provision of, this License, the prevailing Party will be entitled to reimbursement of all its costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.
	Remedies. Licensor specifically agrees that if the covenants in Section 1 are breached, damages will be very difficult, if not impossible, to ascertain. Accordingly, in addition to any other remedy allowed by law, the Parties agree that each covenant ...

	MISCELLANEOUS
	Relationship of the Parties; Force Majeure. The Parties are independent contractors in performance of this License. This License: (i) creates no joint venture, partnership, fiduciary, or agency relationship for any purpose; (ii) confer s no right or r...
	Interpretation. Both Parties were involved in negotiating this License; no rule allowing construction according to authorship applies. Georgia law governs all matters, including torts, relating to this License, without regard to choice of law principl...
	Modification; Waiver; Assignment; Severability. No amendment or modification of this License is effective unless made in a writing signed by both Parties. Each Party agrees to execute documents or perform acts reasonably necessary to perform each prov...
	Notices. Any notice under this License must be in writing and be delivered either by: (i) personal delivery (effective that date); (ii) prepaid nationally- or internationally-recognized commercial overnight courier (effective the next business day); o...

	EXHIBIT A
	DePiction of premises and license area
	Exhibit B
	Form Distribution EasemenT
	EXHIBIT C
	NOTICES AND ADMINISTRATION

	SUMMARY - Women's Equality Day PROCLAMATION.pdf
	SUBJECT:  Women’s Equality Day Proclamation

	SUMMARY - National Senior Citizens Day Proclamation .pdf
	SUBJECT:  National Senior Citizens Day Proclamation

	SUMMARY -50th Anniversary of the 26th Amendment Proclamation .pdf
	SUBJECT:  50th Anniversary of the 26th Amendment Proclamation

	SUMMARY -Discuss a resolution to encourage the DOT to add sound barriers between 285 and the city .pdf
	SUBJECT:  Discuss a Resolution to encourage the DOT to add sound barriers between 285 and the city when they add an extra lane

	VAR GARDENS OF EAST AVE 6-25-2021.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Agenda  Work Session  July  27  2021.pdf
	C) PRESENTATION/ ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS NEW BUSINESS
	D) OLD BUSINESS
	E) NEW BUSINESS

	Draft Minutes Council  June 29  2021.pdf
	G. NEW BUSINESS
	H. Added Executive Session to Discuss a Legal Matter Motion:  Awet Eyasu made a motion go into executive session to discuss a legal matter.
	Ahmed Hassan left the executive session (11:50pm).
	Adjourn executive session and go into the open session.
	Vote; Approve unanimously (5,0)
	I. ADJOURNMENT:
	Meeting adjourned: 12:10AM

	Minutes  Work Session June 27 2021.pdf
	C. PRESENTATION/ ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS NEW BUSINESS None
	D. OLD BUSINESS
	D1) Public Hearing: Variance requests from William R. Braswell Jr. of Oak Hall Companies, LLC for   the property located at 3809 East Avenue (Applicant requested deferment)
	applicable district.
	Public Speaker(s): Brian Medford, Victoria Webb, Warren Hadlock
	E. NEW BUSINESS
	E1) Alcohol Application – RR Property Group LLC dba Thriftown
	the Code.
	The applicant Subata Khan spoke on the request.
	Public Speaker(s): Brian Medford,
	E2) Discuss Market St Sidewalk Construction Options
	curb to improve street drainage
	The City Manager updated the Council that after review and consideration, this item will be handled thru a RFP process.
	Public Speaker(s): Brian Medford, Warren Hadlock
	E3)  Discuss an Electric Vehicle (EV) charging station license agreement with Georgia Power to install electric vehicle charging stations in the City of Clarkston.
	Georgia Power and City staff reviewed and discussed the installation of various EV charging
	stations on City property. The recommended location to install two (2) charging stations is the 2
	eastern most parking spaces adjacent to the City Hall/Police Station Market St driveway entrance.
	The location is optimal due to its proximity to our City Center, the PATH, and the Clarkston Police Station (safety) which is well lit and under 24-hour camera surveillance.
	Georgia Power will have access to the premises for construction, installation, maintenance,
	repair, operation and use for the charging station with customers having access to the area 24
	hours, 7 days a week. GPC shall have the exclusive right to provide vehicle charging and support
	services to drivers of electric plug-in vehicles and EV-charging-related services at the premises at
	no cost to the public. The City will provide the space to GA Power also at no cost (no revenue to
	the City).
	The electric plug-in vehicles license agreement is an irrevocable 10-year commitment.
	Public Speaker(s): Brian Medford, Warren Hadlock, Dean Moore
	E4) Women’s Equality Day Proclamation
	To discuss Women’s Equality Day Proclamation
	Public Speaker(s): None
	E5) National Senior Citizens Day Proclamation
	To discuss National Senior Citizens Day Proclamation
	Public Speaker(s): None
	E6) 50th Anniversary of the 26th Amendment Proclamation
	To discuss 50th Anniversary of the 26th Amendment Proclamation
	Public Speaker(s): Christyna Reagan, Dean Moore
	E7) Discuss a resolution to encourage the DOT to add sound barriers between 285 and the city when they add an extra lane
	To discuss adopting a resolution to encourage the DOT to add sound barriers between 285 and the city when they add an extra lane.
	Public Speaker(s): Dean Moore, Brian Medford
	Amend Agenda E8) Gift cards for covid shots (Jamie Carroll)
	Jamie Carroll discussed designating $10K of ARPA funding to purchase $50 gift cards to distribute at the vaccination sites.
	Public Speaker(s): Dean Moore

	Agenda  Council Meeting  August 4  2021.pdf
	G. NEW BUSINESS
	H. ADJOURNMENT:




